
 

Y:\CDDO\HPB.DRC\HPB-DRC 2025\07.24.25\07.24.25 HPB Agenda.docx 

AGENDA 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD 

Lakeland City Hall, City Commission Chambers 
July 24, 2025, 8:30 A.M. 

 
 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with 
disabilities needing special accommodation to participate in this proceeding, or those requiring language 
assistance (free of charge) should contact the City of Lakeland ADA Specialist, Kristin Meador, no later 
than 48 hours prior to the proceeding, at (863) 834-8444, Email: ADASpecialist@lakelandgov.net. If 
hearing impaired, please contact the TDD numbers: Local – (863) 834-8333 or 1-800-955- 8771 (TDD-
Telecommunications Device for the Deaf) or the Florida Relay Service Number 1-800-955-8770 
(VOICE), for assistance. 
 
Anyone deciding to appeal a decision by the Board on any matter considered at this or any subsequent 
meeting will need a record of the proceedings, and for purposes of that appeal, may need to ensure that 
a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon 
which the appeal is to be based. 
 
 

I. Call to order, determination of a quorum, and roll call. 
 

II. Review and approval of the June 26, 2025 Historic Preservation Board meeting minutes. 
 

III. Old Business: 
 

A. Historic Lakeland, Inc. Watch List Report 
i. 137 Lake Morton Drive  
ii. 2430 New Jersey Road* 
iii. 302 E. Belvedere Street * 
iv. 632 Easton Street* 
v. 2304 Carolina Avenue* 

 

IV. New Business: 
 

A. Lakeland Historic Districts Resurvey Phase 2 Update 
B. Board Discussion regarding Local Landmark Designation 
 
 

V. Adjourn for Design Review Committee. 
 
 
*Not located within a Historic District; brief building histories provided to Board. 

mailto:ADASpecialist@lakelandgov.net


1 

MINUTES 
 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD 
City Commission Chambers  
Thursday, June 26, 2025 
8:30 a.m. 
 
(Please note: These meeting minutes comply with FS 286.011 and are not intended to be a verbatim 
transcript.) 
 
The City of Lakeland Historic Preservation Board met in Regular Session; Bruce Anderson, Tracey 
Downey, Jason Hill, Natalie Oldenkamp, Cesar Perez, and Michael Porter were present. Community & 
Economic Development Department staff Emily Foster, Senior Planner, Historic Preservation and 
Christelle Burrola, Planning Assistant, and Katie Prenoveau, Assistant City Attorney, were also present. 
 

I. Call to Order and Determination of a Quorum 
Chair Dr. Bruce Anderson called the Thursday, June 26, 2025 meeting of the Historic 
Preservation Board (“Board”) to order at 8:31 a.m. A quorum was reached, as five Board 
members were present. Mr. Cesar Perez was not present at the time attendance was taken. 

 
II. Review and Approval of Previous Meeting Minutes 

Ms. Natalie Oldenkamp motioned to approve the May 22, 2025 meeting minutes as 
presented. Ms. Tracey Downey seconded the motion. The motion passed 5—0.  

 
III. Old Business:  

A. Historic Lakeland, Inc. Watch List Report. 
i. 137 Lake Morton Drive  
ii. 2430 New Jersey Road* 
iii. 302 E. Belvedere Street * 
iv. 632 Easton Street* 
v. 2304 Carolina Avenue* 
vi. 716 College Street 
vii. 748 College Street 

 
*Not located within a Historic District; brief building histories provided to Board 

 
B. HPB Annual Review immediately following Design Review Committee meeting  

 
IV. New Business: NONE 

 

  
V. Adjourn for Design Review Committee.  

The meeting adjourned at 8:42 a.m. 
 
The Historic Preservation Board reconvened at 9:20 a.m. for the annual review presentation by 
staff. Ms. Foster presented an overview of the case statistics and completed projects for the 
2024 calendar year, as well as Historic Preservation Program achievements and future HPB 
initiatives. The meeting adjourned at 9:52 a.m. 

 
   

Chair, Historic Preservation Board   Senior Planner, Historic Preservation 



 

  

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
        

     
     

   
 

 
 

       
   

 
 

     
 

      
 

   
 

    
 

    
 

        
   

 
 

   
 

   

AGENDA 
DESIGN REVIEW COMMITTEE 

Lakeland City Hall, City Commission Chambers 
July 24, 2025 

immediately following the Historic Preservation Board Meeting 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities 
needing special accommodation to participate in this proceeding, or those requiring language assistance (free of charge) 
should contact the City of Lakeland ADA Specialist, Kristin Meador, no later than 48 hours prior to the proceeding, at (863) 
834-8444, Email: ADASpecialist@lakelandgov.net. If hearing impaired, please contact the TDD numbers: Local – (863) 
834-8333 or 1-800-955- 8771 (TDD-Telecommunications Device for the Deaf) or the Florida Relay Service Number 1-800-
955-8770 (VOICE), for assistance. 

Anyone deciding to appeal a decision by the Board on any matter considered at this or any subsequent meeting will need 
a record of the proceedings, and for purposes of that appeal, may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings 
is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 

I. Call to order, determination of a quorum, and roll call. 

II. Review and approval of the June 26, 2025 Design Review Committee meeting minutes. 

III. Review Certificates of Review administratively approved since the previous meeting. 

IV. Consideration of Certificate of Review Applications: 

A. Oath Administration for Public Testimony by Assistant City Attorney. 

B. HPB25-116 – 413 W. Park Street – Final Approval requested to replace nine windows on the house at 
the subject address. Owner: Mr. Carlton Samuel. Applicant: Power Home Remodeling. 

V. Other Business: NONE 

VI. Adjournment. 

Y:\CDDO\HPB.DRC\HPB-DRC 2025\07.24.25\07.24.25 DRC Agenda.docx 

mailto:ADASpecialist@lakelandgov.net
https://2025\07.24.25\07.24.25


 

 

 

 
 

    
 

    
      
         

   
  

   

      
  

   

        
   

   

   
    

 

   

   

       
  

  

   
  

    
  

           
          

 
    

 
   

        
    

    
    

  
  

 
 

MINUTES 

DESIGN REVIEW COMMITTEE 

City Commission Chambers 

Thursday, June 26, 2025 

(Note: These meeting minutes comply with F.S. 286.011 and are not intended to be a verbatim transcript.) 

The City of Lakeland Historic Preservation Board’s Design Review Committee met in Regular Session; 
Bruce Anderson, Jason Hill, Natalie Oldenkamp, Cesar Perez, and Michael Porter were present. Historic 
Preservation Board member Tracey Downey was also present. Community & Economic Development 
Department staff Emily Foster, Senior Planner, Historic Preservation, Christelle Burrola, Planning Assistant, 
and Katie Prenoveau, Assistant City Attorney, were also present. 

I. Call to Order and Determination of a Quorum 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Michael Porter at 8:43 a.m. The Committee roll call was 
performed and a quorum was present. 

II. Review and Approval of the Previous Meeting Minutes 

Dr. Bruce Anderson made a motion to approve the May 22, 2025 minutes as presented. Ms. Oldenkamp 
seconded the motion. The motion passed 5—0. 

III. Review of Certificates of Review administratively approved. 

A list of twelve (12) administratively approved Certificate of Review projects covering the period 5/16/25-
6/18/25 was included with the agenda packet. There were no additional questions or comments about 
these projects. 

IV. Consideration of Certificate of Review Applications: 

A. Oath Administration for Public Testimony by Assistant Attorney Katie Prenoveau. 

B. HPB25-093 – 155 Lake Morton Drive – Final Approval requested to modify three 
window openings on the house at this address to accommodate a new outdoor patio 
area. Owner: Ms. Katherine Schichtel. Applicant: Mr. Dan Fowler. 

Chair Porter introduced the request and then asked if there were any conflicts of interest 
pertaining to this agenda item. There were no conflicts. 

Ms. Emily Foster presented the staff report, stating the subject property is located along the 
southern portion of Lake Morton Drive near Success Avenue and consists of a parcel that is 0.39 
acres in area. On this lot is a single-family house in the Neoclassical architectural style that was 
built in 1947 and is a contributing building in the South Lake Morton Historic District as of the 
2022-23 resurvey. This is a revision to the previously approved exterior alteration to the east side 
wing of the house approved under Certificate of Review HPB24-181. This project consisted of the 
construction of a new brick patio wrapping around the east and north sides of the home's kitchen 
and dining areas within the east side wing and included the removal of part of the east (secondary 
facade) kitchen wall and windows and installing folding glass doors. This project received 
approval under Minor Review, as the alterations were proposed to a secondary façade and the 
house was mistaken as a non-contributing resource at the time of review. Under this revised 
proposal, the new patio wrapping around the east and north sides of the home's kitchen and 
dining rooms will remain the same as the first proposal. Where previously most of the east wall 
was to be opened and folding glass doors installed, this request proposes to remove the east side 
window openings, convert one opening to a pair of French doors, and install an adjacent bank of 
casement windows.  In addition, the north facing window on this wing is proposed to be widened 



    

  
 

  

     
  

    
     

    
   

     
  

   
      

   

      
 

 

 
  

  
 

     
  

  
         

  
  

  
     

   
   
  
  
  
  
  

     
 

         
            

   
  

     
   

            
            

 

and new casement windows installed. The intent is to allow more light into the renovated kitchen, 
as well as provide as much vision out as possible. The new doors and windows will have dividing 
muntins in keeping with the aesthetic of the existing windows and home. 

Ms. Foster stated that the request was evaluated using Secretary’s Standards #2, #9, #10 and 
Chapter 6 of the Design Guidelines for Historic Properties. While the removal or alteration of an 
original window opening is not recommended by the Design Guidelines, staff finds the request 
will not adversely affect the overall architectural character of the subject house, as the window 
openings are located on a side wing of the house, mostly on the secondary façade, and the 
property is screened by a tall pierced-brick wall. Additionally, the replacement windows and 
French doors continues the symmetrical fenestration pattern of the house. Ms. Foster stated staff 
recommends final approval of the request as submitted. 

Chair Porter asked if the applicant had any additional comments or questions. Mr. Dan Fowler 
was present in support of the request. Mr. Fowler had no additional comments or questions. 

MOTION: Final approval of the request as submitted. (B. Anderson/N. Oldenkamp, 5—0) 

C. HPB25-109 – 1137 Dorothy Street – Final Approval requested to construct a new 
single-family house at this address. Owner: Mr. William R. Noah. Applicant: Trotter 
Construction LLC. 

Chair Porter introduced the request and then asked if there were any conflicts of interest 
pertaining to this agenda item. There were no conflicts. 

Ms. Emily Foster presented the staff report, stating the subject property a historically platted lot in 
the Lake Hunter Terrace Historic District and consists of 0.15 acres; this lot is currently vacant 
and has alley access at the rear (north side) of the property. The Applicant requests to build a 
one-story, single-family house on the subject property with 1,820 square feet of living area. The 
home will feature a neo-traditional aesthetic reflecting elements of the Frame Vernacular 
architectural style, such as a side-gabled main roof and gabled front porch supported by square 
columns, windows with a four-over-four lite configuration, a front entry displaying a full-lite front 
door, gable fretwork, and asymmetrical composition. The house plan features an integrated porch 
on the left-side elevation of the house and an attached garage on the rear elevation, which will 
be accessed from the alley at the rear of the lot. Materials proposed for the new house include: 

• Concrete stem wall foundation with stucco cladding 
• Fiber-cement lap siding, trim, and casing 
• Vinyl single-hung sash windows with 4-inch mullions between paired/grouped windows 
• Material TBD; full-lite front door and French doors at side porch; typical garage door 
• Asphalt shingles on 5/12 pitch roof. 
• Fiber-cement fascia and vented soffit and gable fretwork 
• Concrete floor and steps; Fiber-cement-wrapped columns 

The site plan proposed for the proposed new construction shows orientation of the home’s front 
façade towards Dorothy Street. The proposed building setbacks and porch depth for the house 
meet the Land Development Code’s Urban Neighborhood Standards. However, for compatibility 
with the front yard setbacks of adjacent properties, the front yard setback should be moved from 
17 feet to 24 feet. (848 S. Central Ave = 24 feet; 1138 Dorothy Street = 29 feet; 1125 Dorothy 
Street; 1117 Dorothy Street = 24 feet) 

Ms. Foster stated that the request was evaluated using Secretary’s Standards #2, #5, #9, and 
Chapter 6 of the Design Guidelines for Historic Properties. Adjacent to the subject property along 
Dorothy Street exist several one-story houses that exhibit the Bungalow, Frame Vernacular, 
Mediterranean Revival, and Masonry Vernacular styles. Staff finds that the proposed new house 
is compatible in massing and scale to contributing Frame Vernacular and Bungalow houses found 

Page 2 



    

  
         
            

 
 

  
   

   
    

 

  
   

   
   

    
  
    
  

   
  

 

       

 
 

  

  
    
     

          
   

 

  
 

     

 

              
     

 

throughout the Lake Hunter Terrace Historic District. The scale and proportion of the architectural 
elements of the house, including roof pitch and floor-to-ceiling heights, is also compatible with 
adjacent structures. Staff finds that the proposed materials are consistent with residences in the 
surrounding neighborhood and the Design Guidelines. The design of the house displays a neo-
traditional style that is compatible with the architectural character of the Lake Hunter Terrace 
neighborhood, as well as the Design Guidelines. Finally, the proposed placement of the house on 
the lot is consistent with the Design Guidelines and Urban Neighborhood Standards in terms of 
orientation, building setbacks, and porch depth. As stated in the staff report, however, the front 
yard setback should be moved from 17 feet to 24 feet for compatibility with the front yard setbacks 
of adjacent properties along Dorothy Street. 

Ms. Foster stated staff recommends approval of the request with the following conditions, to be 
reviewed and approved by staff prior to permitting: 

1. Windows must be recessed to provide a shadow line and not installed flush to the exterior 
wall surface. Window muntins must be dimensional and mounted to the exterior glass. 

2. The foundation must be elevated for a minimum of 21-inches above grade. 
3. Fiber-cement lap siding shall have an exposure of no greater than 6-inches. 
4. Revise the front yard setback from 17 feet to 24 feet. 
5. Submittal of an exterior paint palette. 

Chair Porter asked if the applicant had any additional comments or questions. Mr. Blayne Trotter, 
representing the applicant, was present in support of the request. Mr. Trotter had no additional 
comments or questions. 

In response to Chair Porter, Mr. Trotter stated he is in agreement with staff’s recommendation. 

Discussion ensued among the Board and applicant regarding the columns and gables on the 
home. 

In addition to staff recommendations, the Board discussed adding the following conditions: 

1. Remove side porch columns 
2. Remove windows and faux beams in front porch gable 
3. A triangular vent may be used in the gable 

MOTION: Final approval of the request with conditions as recommended by staff with the 
additional conditions. (B. Anderson/J. Hill, 5—0) 

V. Other Business: NONE 

VI. Adjournment: There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:09 a.m. 

Chair, Design Review Committee Senior Planner, Historic Preservation 

Page 3 



  

  

  

  

  

  

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

iMS Certificates of Review 
Date Approved from 6/17/2025 to 7/17/2025 

Number 
Location 
Description Milestone Approved 

Historic Preservation (16) 

Minor Review (16) 

HPB25-113 Certificate of Review Issued 06/17/25 

1110 SUCCESS AVE, LAKELAND, FL 33803 
New fence installation in back and side yard of the subject property. 200 linear feet of fence. 6 ft tall white privacy vinyl 
fence installation in the non visible (from Success Ave) area of our back yard. 6 ft tall wooden fence installation in the 
visible (from Success Ave) area of yard. 

HPB25-114 Certificate of Review Issued 06/24/25 

1813 PAWNEE TRL, LAKELAND, FL 33803 
Polk County Window and Door will be replacing 1 window in the back of the home that will be 3 over 1 divided lite with 
grids on the exterior glass. The window will be the same window as in the front of the house but this one will be in the 
back of the house. 
The door in question is the Back door of the house next to the window the is being replaced. Nothing is being replaced in 
the front of the house. 

HPB25-118 Certificate of Review Issued 06/24/25 

1122 FLORIDA AVE S, LAKELAND, FL 33803 
Install non-illuminated Southside Package & Lounge wall sign, 35 SF in area, on the west elevation wall of subject building. 

HPB25-119 Certificate of Review Issued 06/24/25 

732 PARK HILL AVE, LAKELAND, FL 33801 
Installation of a 10' X 16' (160 SF) Heartland Hillsdale gable roof shed in rear yard of subject property. The shed will be 
painted to match house on property and roofing shingles for the shed will compliment the shingles on the house. 

HPB25-117 Certificate of Review Issued 06/25/25 

1119 FLORIDA AVE S, LAKELAND, FL 33803 
Install “Black Swan Tattoo” Wall Sign. 22.18 SF wall sign consisting of 1/4" aluminum flat cut out letters painted white and 
stud mounted to exterior wall. Non-lighted. 

HPB25-120 Certificate of Review Issued 06/25/25 

801 MAIN ST E, LAKELAND, FL 33801 
Construction of a dumpster enclosure for Grievous Angel restaurant at the west side of the subject property. Dumpster 
enclosure will be masonry block walls with wood grain texture on 1’ x 6’ Hardie board doors. 

HPB25-121 Certificate of Review Issued 07/02/25 

114 BELMAR ST E, LAKELAND, FL 33803 
Install 158' of 6' High black chain link fence & 1 - 12' wide Double Swing Gate on subject property. Temporary fence to 
secure property owned by the Lakeland CRA. 

Intuitive Municipal Solutions, LLC 
1 of 3 Created: 

https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709375440
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709376525
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709378548
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709246850
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709378527
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709381187
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709381782
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709381782
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709381782
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709381187
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709381187
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709378527
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709378527
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709378548
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709378548
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709246850
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709246850
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709375440
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709375440
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709376525
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709376525


  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

iMS Certificates of Review 
Date Approved from 6/17/2025 to 7/17/2025 

HPB25-122 Certificate of Review Issued 07/02/25 

110 BELMAR ST E, LAKELAND, FL 33803 
Install 168' of 6' High Black Chain Link Fence on subject property. Temporary fence to secure property owned by the 
Lakeland CRA. 

HPB25-123 Certificate of Review Issued 07/02/25 

1132 FLORIDA AVE S, LAKELAND, FL 33803 
Install 187' of 6' high black chain link fence on subject property. Temporary fence to secure property owned by the 
Lakeland CRA. 

HPB25-124 Certificate of Review Issued 06/30/25 

324 MAXWELL ST W, LAKELAND, FL 33803 
Build back deck (approx. 345 sq ft) at the rear of the house with composite construction, Timber Tech Harvest 
Collection, color BROWNSTONE, picket style railing (approx. 40 linear ft.), two sets of steps 
with 36” openings and wide / shallow steps and railing both sides. 

HPB25-125 Certificate of Review Issued 07/01/25 

809 SUCCESS AVE, LAKELAND, FL 33801 
Replacing existing 6 ft. tall wood fence with a new 6 ft. tall wood fence, maintaining a 3 ft. setback from the alley, in the 
rear and side yards of subject property. 

HPB25-128 Certificate of Review Issued 07/08/25 

35 LAKE MORTON DR, LAKELAND, FL 33801 
Building has experienced normal wear and tear to the exterior. Proposed Work includes repairs to stucco, enclosures and 
replacements of windows. All paint work to be incidental to core work.  After stucco work and repairs, areas to be painted 
to match adjacent existing colors. Sealing and remedial work will occur to in place items along with replacement windows. 
Please see drawings and description in Project Details tile.  At minimum windows will be replaced in kind.  Windows are 
mixture of modern aluminum and wood clad exterior windows with applied wood mullions at the interior.  It has been 
determined through research that certain windows have changed configuration and function since building was built. 
Where feasible economically and with modern systems in place, proposed work will return those windows to the same 
configurations and/or function. 

HPB25-131 Certificate of Review Issued 07/17/25 

1043 LEXINGTON ST, LAKELAND, FL 33801 
Remove all (17) existing wood windows, reframe, and replace with new windows size for size, matching 9-lite Prairie style 
upper sashes. Justification was provided for replacing historic windows. 

HPB25-132 Certificate of Review Issued 07/11/25 

846 ORANGE ST E, LAKELAND, FL 33801 
Remove existing shingle roof system on the main house and replace with 26 ga 5V crimp flat panel metal. 

Intuitive Municipal Solutions, LLC 
2 of 3 Created: 

https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709381803
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709381810
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709384575
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709384890
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709421549
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709427821
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709428122
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709427821
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709427821
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709428122
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709428122
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709381810
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709381810
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709421549
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709421549
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709381803
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709381803
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709384575
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709384575
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709384890
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709384890


  

  

  

 

 

 

  

  

iMS Certificates of Review 
Date Approved from 6/17/2025 to 7/17/2025 

HPB25-135 Certificate of Review Issued 07/16/25 

1927 CHEROKEE TRL, LAKELAND, FL 33803 
Constructing an attached open (8’x46’) aluminum awning over pool deck attaching to rear detached garage- not the main 
house structure. 

HPB25-134 Certificate of Review Issued 07/16/25 

1034 MISSISSIPPI AVE, LAKELAND, FL 33803 
Replace existing 15-lite front door with a 9-lite Prairie style fiberglass door, matching size of opening (FL#20461.11). This 
house has Prairie style 9-lite upper sash windows. 

Total Planning Projects Approved: 16 

Intuitive Municipal Solutions, LLC 
3 of 3 Created: 

https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709430439
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709430306
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709430306
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709430306
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709430439
https://ims.lakelandgov.net/ims/Base/Details/?EncrID=709430439
https://FL#20461.11


    
 

 
 

 
 

 
  
  

 
 

  
     

     
    

 
 

 
  
  
  

 

 
 

        
 

  
 

            
         

         
          

      
  

 

        
    

       
     

     
 

       
 

 

        
    

       
    

          
   

 
 

 

     
   

  

HISTORIC PRESERVATION BOARD 
DESIGN REVIEW COMMITTEE 

STAFF REPORT 
July 24, 2025 

Project # HPB25-116 
Project Type Replacement Windows 

Property Address; 
Historic Name 

413 W. Park Street; 
The Thomas and Sallie Blythe House (CD 1934) 

Historic District; FMSF# Dixieland Historic District; #DL 347 
Owner/Applicant Samuel Carlton / Power Home Remodeling 

Future Land Use; Zoning; 
Context District 

Residential Medium; RA-4; 
Urban Neighborhood 

Existing Use Residential 
Adjacent Properties Residential 
Previous Approvals N/A 

REQUEST 

The Applicant requests approval to replace nine historic wood windows in the subject house. 

SUMMARY OF BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The subject property consists of one lot in the Dixieland Subdivision (Block D, Lot 13) that is 0.15 acres in size. On 
this property is a one-story, single-family house built circa 1925, which is a contributing building in the Dixieland 
Historic District. The house exhibits the Craftsman Bungalow architectural style and features a gabled roof pierced 
by a brick chimney, a hipped roof front porch supported by square columns on stone plinths that has been 
enclosed, and a hipped roof porch on the rear of the house that also has been enclosed. Vinyl siding is present on 
the house. 

Except for the enclosed front and rear porches that have non-historic aluminum and vinyl windows the historic 
wood windows in the house consist of: seven (7) double-hung sash windows with a three-over-one lite 
configuration and five (5) double casement windows with six lites each. Two casement windows are located on 
either side of the chimney and three casement windows are located in the kitchen on the east side elevation of 
the house. Four double-hung sash windows are located in the bedrooms on the west side elevation of the house. 

The Applicant proposes to replace the historic wood windows according to the following, matching the existing 
window opening size: 

1. Replace four (4) historic double-hung sash windows with single-hung sash vinyl windows. A simulated 
divided lite appearance with exterior grid matching the historic windows was not specified. 

2. Replace all five (5) casement windows with fixed vinyl windows. A simulated divided lite appearance with 
exterior grid matching the historic windows was not specified. 

3. The request also includes installation of a 3-inch-wide aluminum mullion between each paired and grouped 
windows (bedrooms and kitchen). 

APPLICABLE GUIDLINES: 

The Secretary of Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation (“Standards”) and the City of Lakeland’s Design Guidelines 
for Historic Properties (“Design Guidelines”) are the basis for review per the City of Lakeland Land Development 
Code (“LDC”), Article 11: Historic Preservation Standards. 
y:\cddo\hpb.drc\hpb-drc 2025\07.24.25\413 w. park street (hpb25-116)\413 w. park street staff report.docx Page 1 



    
 

 

   
 

   
   

 

   
   

      
     

 

      
  

 
 

    
  

 
    
    

  
    

    
  

     
   

 
     

     
    

    
   

   
  

       
  

   
      

  
    

        
 

     
    

  
      

     
       

   
   

The following Standards apply to this project: 

Standard #5. Distinctive materials, features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of 
craftsmanship that characterize a property will be preserved. 

Standard #9. New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction will not destroy historic 
materials, features, and spatial relationships that characterize the property. The new works will be 
differentiated from the old and will be compatible with the historic materials, features, size, scale, and 
proportion, and massing to protect the integrity of the property and its environment. 

Standard #10. New additions and adjacent or related new construction will be undertaken in such a manner 
that, if removed in the future, the essential form and integrity of the historic property and its environment 
would be unimpaired. 

The following Design Guidelines apply to this project: 
Chapter 6 Exterior Architectural Features: Alteration and Maintenance; Sub-Chapter 6.4 Windows and 
Shutters (for Contributing Buildings) 
• Preserve original windows. Original windows should be repaired and restored, rather than replaced. 
• Use clear replacement glass to repair broken panes. Do not use tinted, reflective, opaque, or other non-

traditional glass types. 
• Existing window trim, casing, and other decorative details contributing to the building’s character should 

be preserved. Any replacement of trim, casing and other decorative details surrounding the window 
must use the same or similar material of the same design, profile, and dimension. 

• Window openings should be kept in the same proportion as originally provided. Window head heights 
should be consistent throughout the building. Avoid enlarging or diminishing window openings to fit air 
conditioning units. 

• Replacement of original windows should only be considered in cases where original windows have 
deteriorated beyond reasonable repair. Conditions that constitute a repairable window include: missing 
or broken glass, meeting rails not aligning; cords broken or hardware missing; sill or frame rotted; and 
partially rotted rails and stiles that require patching. Conditions that constitute a window that is beyond 
reasonable repair include: missing components or units; extreme wood rot; where 50% or more of a 
window's components must be reconstructed. 

• Replacement window requirements: 
o Window design should reflect the architectural style of the building (see Chapter 5: House Styles 

for window designs appropriate for specific architectural styles). 
o Must retain the opening size of the original window. 
o Must use the same type of window as the original. Double-hung sash windows may be replaced 

with a double-hung sash or single-hung sash window. 
o Must retain the same divided lite/pane pattern as the original window. Muntins/grids must be 

dimensional and mounted to the exterior glass, approximately of the same dimension as the 
original window; 

o Must be installed with a recess inside the casing of the window opening to produce a shadow 
line (flush installation is not permitted); box or block frame windows are recommended as 
fin/flange windows do not produce an adequate recess. 

o Double or grouped windows may not be separated by a standard mull bar and must be 
separated by a wood or similar material mullion of the same dimension as the original mullion. 

o Window must be trimmed out with wood or similar material of the same design, profile, and 
dimension as the original, including angled sill and top drip edge. It is recommended that the 
original window trim and casing be preserved. 

y:\cddo\hpb.drc\hpb-drc 2025\07.24.25\413 w. park street (hpb25-116)\413 w. park street staff report.docx Page 2 



    
 

  
     

    
 

 

     
     

   
  

 

   
    

    
      

             
     

   
    

 
 

 
 

  
 

       
  

o Non-historic windows such as jalousie, awning, and aluminum single-hung sash windows, may 
be replaced with windows that are typical for the architectural style of the building. 

o Possible substitutes must be approved by the Historic Preservation Board. 
ANALYSIS: 

Typically, a request for window replacement requires only Minor Review (staff-level review) if the request is 
justified and complies with the Design Guidelines. Original windows are character-defining features of a historic 
building, and the removal of repairable historic windows and installation of inappropriate replacement windows 
can adversely affect the architectural integrity of a building. 

Staff finds that the historic wood windows requested to be replaced are not deteriorated beyond repair and 
therefore, justification for their replacement is not met. The conditions of the windows that the Applicant 
provided in their letter dated June 18, 2025 constitute repairable windows according to the Design Guidelines. 
Additionally, the installation of a 3-inch-wide aluminum mullion between the paired and grouped windows is not 
appropriate as the aluminum mullion does not replicate the profile and dimensions of the historic wood mullions. 
Further, the proposed replacement windows do not match the divided lite appearance of the historic double-hung 
sash (three -over-one lite configuration) and casement (6-lite configuration) windows. For these reasons, staff 
recommends that the historic wood windows be repaired by a qualified window restoration professional instead 
of being replaced as requested. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Denial of the request as submitted. 

Report prepared by: Emily Foster, Senior Planner, Historic Preservation 
Liaison to the Historic Preservation Board 

y:\cddo\hpb.drc\hpb-drc 2025\07.24.25\413 w. park street (hpb25-116)\413 w. park street staff report.docx Page 3 



	 	 


	 


	 	 


	 	

 
 

  
  

  
   

  
  

   

  
  

  
  

   

  
  

   

  
   

 
  
  

   

    
  

 
 

  
   

  

Project # _______________________ 

Install Date _______________________ 
Carlton, Samuel 

H.O.A Yes____ No____ Push____ Carlton, Kate 
413 West Park Street 

Financing Power____ Own_____ Lakeland, FL 33803 

12 
Master 

Mullion FL# 33622.1 

4 
11,13 Kitchen 

8 & 9 Kitchen SH FL# 33447.1 
Master Mullion FL# 33622.1 25.0 x 24.5 

SH FL# 33447.1 
35.25 x 58.5 

5 
3 Kitchen 

Kitchen SH FL# 33447.1 
Fixed FL# 33453.5 25.0 x 24.5 

26.25 x 32.25 

10 
Guest Room 

2Mullion FL# 33622.1 
6 & 7 Living 

Guest room Fixed FL# 33453.5 
SH FL# 33447.1 25.5 x 32.75 

35.25 x 58.5 

1 
Living 

Fixed FL# 33453.5 
25.5 x 32.75 







  

 

       

 

  

 

  

 

     

 

 

 

    

 

     

  

Florida Building Code Online https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_app_dtl.aspx?param=wGEVXQwtD... 

BCIS Home Log In User Registration Hot Topics Submit Surcharge Stats & Facts Publications Contact Us BCIS Site Map Links Search 

Product Approval 
USER: Public User 

Product Approval Menu > Product or Application Search > Application List > Application Detail 

FL # FL33447-R1 

Application Type Revision 

Code Version 2023 

Application Status Approved 

Comments 

Archived 

Product Manufacturer Pella Corporation 

Address/Phone/Email 102 Main St. 
Pella, IA 50219 
(641) 621-6096 
pellaproductapproval@pella.com 

Authorized Signature Mary Rukashaza-Mukome 
certifications@cws.cc 

Technical Representative Mary Rukashaza-Mukome 

Address/Phone/Email 102 Main Street 
Pella, IA 50219 
(641) 621-3317 
rukashazamc@pella.com 

Quality Assurance Representative Dave Criscuolo 

Address/Phone/Email 1900 SW 44th Avenue 
Ocala, FL 34474 
(647) 651-0199 
dcriscuolo@cws.cc 

Category Windows 

Subcategory Single Hung 

Compliance Method Evaluation Report from a Florida Registered Architect or a Licensed Florida 
Professional Engineer 

Evaluation Report - Hardcopy Received 

Florida Engineer or Architect Name who developed Lucas A. Turner 
the Evaluation Report 

Florida License PE-58201 

Quality Assurance Entity Keystone Certifications, Inc. 

Quality Assurance Contract Expiration Date 07/15/2030 

Validated By Steven M. Urich, PE 

Validation Checklist - Hardcopy Received 

Certificate of Independence FL33447_R1_COI_EvalReportPEL154B.pdf 

Referenced Standard and Year (of Standard) Standard Year 
AAMA/WDMA/CSA 101/I.S.2/A440 2017 
PA TAS 202 1994 

1 of 3 1/11/24, 08:59 

http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/
http://www.myflorida.com/
http://www.myflorida.com/
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_about.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_about.aspx
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/divisions.html
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/divisions.html
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_about.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_about.aspx
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/DBPR/about-us/departments-secretary/
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/DBPR/about-us/departments-secretary/
https://floridabuilding.org/c/default.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/default.aspx
javascript:__doPostBack('public_layout_top$public_top_menu$lnkLogin','')
javascript:__doPostBack('public_layout_top$public_top_menu$lnkLogin','')
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_user_regi.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_user_regi.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_hottopics.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_hottopics.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/sc/sc_default.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/sc/sc_default.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_under_construction.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_under_construction.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_publications.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_publications.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_about.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_about.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_under_construction.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_under_construction.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_links.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_links.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_under_construction.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_under_construction.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_default.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_default.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_default.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_default.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_app_srch.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_app_srch.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_app_lst.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_app_lst.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Independence/FL33447_R1_COI_EvalReportPEL154B.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Independence/FL33447_R1_COI_EvalReportPEL154B.pdf
mailto:dcriscuolo@cws.cc
mailto:rukashazamc@pella.com
mailto:certifications@cws.cc
mailto:pellaproductapproval@pella.com
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_app_dtl.aspx?param=wGEVXQwtD


  
 

    

    
    

 
        

 

 

    
    

 
         

         

 

        

    
    

 
        

 

 

    
    

 
           

 

    
    

 
           

 

Florida Building Code Online https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_app_dtl.aspx?param=wGEVXQwtD... 

Equivalence of Product Standards 
Certified By 

Sections from the Code 

Product Approval Method Method 1 Option D 

Date Submitted 10/05/2023 

Date Validated 10/05/2023 

Date Pending FBC Approval 10/08/2023 

Date Approved 12/13/2023 

Summary of Products 

FL # Model, Number or Name Description 

33447.1 SH-510 SH-510 Vinyl Flange/Fin Single Hung, Non-Impact 

Limits of Use 
Approved for use in HVHZ: No 
Approved for use outside HVHZ: Yes 
Impact Resistant: No 
Design Pressure: +50/-50 
Other: SH-510, Max. size 53.125" x 76". Glass complies with 
ASTM E1300. 

Installation Instructions 
FL33447_R1_II_PEL-154B.pdf
 Verified By: Lucas A. Turner 58201
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 
Evaluation Reports 
FL33447_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL154B.pdf
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 

33447.2 SH-510 SH-510 Vinyl Flange/Fin Single Hung, Non-Impact 

Limits of Use 
Approved for use in HVHZ: Yes 
Approved for use outside HVHZ: Yes 
Impact Resistant: No 
Design Pressure: N/A 
Other: SH-510 Vinyl Single Hung, O/X, Max. size 52" x 71", 
see installation dwgs. for DP. Glass complies with ASTM E1300. 

Installation Instructions 
FL33447_R1_II_PEL-485B.pdf
 Verified By: Lucas A. Turner 58201
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 
Evaluation Reports 
FL33447_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL485B.pdf
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 

33447.3 SH-510 SH-510 Vinyl Single Hung Oriel w/ HD Meeting Rail 

Limits of Use 
Approved for use in HVHZ: No 
Approved for use outside HVHZ: Yes 
Impact Resistant: No 
Design Pressure: +60/-60 
Other: SH-510, Max. size 52" x 96", Oriel. Glass complies 
with ASTM E1300. 

Installation Instructions 
FL33447_R1_II_PEL-293B.pdf
 Verified By: Lucas A. Turner 58201
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 
Evaluation Reports 
FL33447_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL293B.pdf
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 

33447.4 SH-510 Continuous Head & Sill SH-510 Vinyl Single Hung, Continuous Head & Sill, Non-
Impact. 

Limits of Use 
Approved for use in HVHZ: No 
Approved for use outside HVHZ: Yes 
Impact Resistant: No 
Design Pressure: N/A 
Other: SH-510 Cont. Hd. & Sill, Max. size 72 7/8" x 61 3/4", 
see Installation Dwgs. for DP. Glass complies with ASTM 
E1300. 

Installation Instructions 
FL33447_R1_II_PEL-442B.pdf
 Verified By: Lucas A. Turner 58201
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 
Evaluation Reports 
FL33447_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL442B.pdf
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 

33447.5 SH-510 Continuous Head & Sill SH-510 Vinyl Single Hung, Cont. Head & Sill, Non-Impact. 

Limits of Use 
Approved for use in HVHZ: No 
Approved for use outside HVHZ: Yes 
Impact Resistant: No 
Design Pressure: N/A 
Other: SH-510 Cont. Hd. & Sill, Max. size 74 1/8" x 72", see 
chart on Installation Dwgs. for DP. Glass complies with ASTM 
E1300. 

Installation Instructions 
FL33447_R1_II_PEL-492B.pdf
 Verified By: Lucas A. Turner 58201
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 
Evaluation Reports 
FL33447_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL492B.pdf
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 

2 of 3 

Back Next 

1/11/24, 08:59 

https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33447_R1_II_PEL-154B.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33447_R1_II_PEL-154B.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33447_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL154B.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33447_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL154B.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33447_R1_II_PEL-485B.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33447_R1_II_PEL-485B.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33447_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL485B.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33447_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL485B.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33447_R1_II_PEL-293B.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33447_R1_II_PEL-293B.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33447_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL293B.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33447_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL293B.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33447_R1_II_PEL-442B.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33447_R1_II_PEL-442B.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33447_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL442B.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33447_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL442B.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33447_R1_II_PEL-492B.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33447_R1_II_PEL-492B.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33447_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL492B.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33447_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL492B.pdf
javascript:__doPostBack('lnkBack','')
javascript:__doPostBack('lnkBack','')
javascript:__doPostBack('lnkNext','')
javascript:__doPostBack('lnkNext','')
phrg

https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_app_dtl.aspx?param=wGEVXQwtD














  

 

       

 

  

 

  

 

     

 

 

 

    

 

     

  

Florida Building Code Online https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_app_dtl.aspx?param=wGEVXQwtD... 

BCIS Home Log In User Registration Hot Topics Submit Surcharge Stats & Facts Publications Contact Us BCIS Site Map Links Search 

Product Approval 
USER: Public User 

Product Approval Menu > Product or Application Search > Application List > Application Detail 

FL # FL33453-R1 

Application Type Revision 

Code Version 2023 

Application Status Approved 

Comments 

Archived 

Product Manufacturer Pella Corporation 

Address/Phone/Email 102 Main St. 
Pella, IA 50219 
(641) 621-6096 
pellaproductapproval@pella.com 

Authorized Signature Mary Rukashaza-Mukome 
certifications@cws.cc 

Technical Representative Mary Rukashaza-Mukome 

Address/Phone/Email 102 Main Street 
Pella, IA 50219 
(641) 621-3317 
rukashazamc@pella.com 

Quality Assurance Representative Dave Criscuolo 

Address/Phone/Email 1900 SW 44th Avenue 
Ocala, FL 34474 
(647) 651-0199 
dcriscuolo@cws.cc 

Category Windows 

Subcategory Fixed 

Compliance Method Evaluation Report from a Florida Registered Architect or a Licensed Florida 
Professional Engineer 

Evaluation Report - Hardcopy Received 

Florida Engineer or Architect Name who developed Lucas. A Turner 
the Evaluation Report 

Florida License PE-58201 

Quality Assurance Entity Keystone Certifications, Inc. 

Quality Assurance Contract Expiration Date 07/15/2030 

Validated By Steven M. Urich, PE 

Validation Checklist - Hardcopy Received 

Certificate of Independence FL33453_R1_COI_EvalReportPEL339A.pdf 

Referenced Standard and Year (of Standard) Standard Year 
AAMA/WDMA/CSA/101/I.S.2/A440 2017 
PA TAS 202 1994 

1 of 3 1/11/24, 08:57 

http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/
http://www.myflorida.com/
http://www.myflorida.com/
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_about.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_about.aspx
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/divisions.html
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/divisions.html
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_about.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_about.aspx
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/DBPR/about-us/departments-secretary/
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/DBPR/about-us/departments-secretary/
https://floridabuilding.org/c/default.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/default.aspx
javascript:__doPostBack('public_layout_top$public_top_menu$lnkLogin','')
javascript:__doPostBack('public_layout_top$public_top_menu$lnkLogin','')
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_user_regi.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_user_regi.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_hottopics.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_hottopics.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/sc/sc_default.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/sc/sc_default.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_under_construction.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_under_construction.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_publications.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_publications.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_about.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_about.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_under_construction.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_under_construction.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_links.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_links.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_under_construction.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_under_construction.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_default.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_default.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_default.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_default.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_app_srch.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_app_srch.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_app_lst.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_app_lst.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Independence/FL33453_R1_COI_EvalReportPEL339A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Independence/FL33453_R1_COI_EvalReportPEL339A.pdf
mailto:dcriscuolo@cws.cc
mailto:rukashazamc@pella.com
mailto:certifications@cws.cc
mailto:pellaproductapproval@pella.com
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_app_dtl.aspx?param=wGEVXQwtD


  
 

    

    
    

  

    
    

  

    
    

  

    
    

  

    
    

  

Florida Building Code Online https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_app_dtl.aspx?param=wGEVXQwtD... 

Equivalence of Product Standards 
Certified By 

Sections from the Code 

Product Approval Method Method 1 Option D 

Date Submitted 08/18/2023 

Date Validated 08/20/2023 

Date Pending FBC Approval 08/23/2023 

Date Approved 10/18/2023 

Summary of Products 

FL # Model, Number or Name Description 

33453.1 FX-515 FX-515 Vinyl Fin/Flange Picture Window, Non-Impact 

Limits of Use 
Approved for use in HVHZ: No 
Approved for use outside HVHZ: Yes 
Impact Resistant: No 
Design Pressure: N/A 
Other: See Installation Detail for sizes and DPs. Glass 
complies with ASTM E1300 

Installation Instructions 
FL33453_R1_II_PEL-234A.pdf
 Verified By: Lucas A. Turner 58201
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 
Evaluation Reports 
FL33453_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL234A.pdf
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 

33453.2 FX-515 FX-515 Vinyl Fin/Flange Picture Window, Non-Impact 

Limits of Use 
Approved for use in HVHZ: Yes 
Approved for use outside HVHZ: Yes 
Impact Resistant: No 
Design Pressure: N/A 
Other: See Installation Detail for sizes and DPs. Glass 
complies with ASTM E1300 

Installation Instructions 
FL33453_R1_II_PEL-506A.pdf
 Verified By: Lucas A. Turner 58201
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 
Evaluation Reports 
FL33453_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL506A.pdf
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 

33453.3 FX-515 FX-515 Vinyl Fixed Window, Continuous Head & Sill, Non-
Impact 

Limits of Use 
Approved for use in HVHZ: No 
Approved for use outside HVHZ: Yes 
Impact Resistant: No 
Design Pressure: N/A 
Other: See Installation Detail for sizes and DPs. Glass 
complies with ASTM E1300 

Installation Instructions 
FL33453_R1_II_PEL-511A.pdf
 Verified By: Lucas A. Turner 58201
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 
Evaluation Reports 
FL33453_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL511A.pdf
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 

33453.4 FX-530 FX-530 Vinyl Fin/Flange Picture Window, Non-Impact 

Limits of Use 
Approved for use in HVHZ: Yes 
Approved for use outside HVHZ: Yes 
Impact Resistant: No 
Design Pressure: N/A 
Other: See Installation Detail for sizes and DPs. Glass 
complies with ASTM E1300 

Installation Instructions 
FL33453_R1_II_PEL-507A.pdf
 Verified By: Lucas A. Turner 58201
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 
Evaluation Reports 
FL33453_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL507A.pdf
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 

33453.5 FX-530 FX-530 Vinyl Fin/Flange Picture Window, Non-Impact 

Limits of Use 
Approved for use in HVHZ: No 
Approved for use outside HVHZ: Yes 
Impact Resistant: No 
Design Pressure: N/A 
Other: See Installation Detail for sizes and DPs. Glass 
complies with ASTM E1300 

Installation Instructions 
FL33453_R1_II_PEL-339A.pdf
 Verified By: Lucas A. Turner 58201
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 
Evaluation Reports 
FL33453_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL339A.pdf
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 

2 of 3 

Back Next 

1/11/24, 08:57 

https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33453_R1_II_PEL-234A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33453_R1_II_PEL-234A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33453_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL234A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33453_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL234A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33453_R1_II_PEL-506A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33453_R1_II_PEL-506A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33453_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL506A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33453_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL506A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33453_R1_II_PEL-511A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33453_R1_II_PEL-511A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33453_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL511A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33453_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL511A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33453_R1_II_PEL-507A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33453_R1_II_PEL-507A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33453_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL507A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33453_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL507A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33453_R1_II_PEL-339A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33453_R1_II_PEL-339A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33453_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL339A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33453_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL339A.pdf
javascript:__doPostBack('lnkBack','')
javascript:__doPostBack('lnkBack','')
javascript:__doPostBack('lnkNext','')
javascript:__doPostBack('lnkNext','')
phrg

https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_app_dtl.aspx?param=wGEVXQwtD


















  

 

       

 

  

 

  

 

     

 

 

 

    

 

     

  
 

 

Florida Building Code Online https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_app_dtl.aspx?param=wGEVXQwt... 

BCIS Home Log In User Registration Hot Topics Submit Surcharge Stats & Facts Publications Contact Us BCIS Site Map Links Search 

Product Approval 
USER: Public User 

Product Approval Menu > Product or Application Search > Application List > Application Detail 

FL # FL33622-R1 

Application Type Revision 

Code Version 2023 

Application Status Approved 

Comments 

Archived 

Product Manufacturer Pella Corporation 

Address/Phone/Email 102 Main St. 
Pella, IA 50219 
(641) 621-6096 
pellaproductapproval@pella.com 

Authorized Signature Mary Rukashaza-Mukome 
certifications@cws.cc 

Technical Representative Mary Rukashaza-Mukome 

Address/Phone/Email 102 Main Street 
Pella, IA 50219 
(641) 621-3317 
rukashazamc@pella.com 

Quality Assurance Representative Dave Criscuolo 

Address/Phone/Email 1900 SW 44th Avenue 
Ocala, FL 34474 
(647) 651-0199 
dcriscuolo@cws.cc 

Category Windows 

Subcategory Mullions 

Compliance Method Evaluation Report from a Florida Registered Architect or a Licensed Florida 
Professional Engineer 

Evaluation Report - Hardcopy Received 

Florida Engineer or Architect Name who developed Lucas A. Turner 
the Evaluation Report 

Florida License PE-58201 

Quality Assurance Entity Keystone Certifications, Inc. 

Quality Assurance Contract Expiration Date 07/15/2030 

Validated By Steven M. Urich, PE 

Validation Checklist - Hardcopy Received 

Certificate of Independence FL33622_R1_COI_EvalReportPEL836A.pdf 

Referenced Standard and Year (of Standard) Standard Year 
AAMA 450 2020 
ASTM E 1996 2020 
ASTM E1886 2019 
TAS 201/202/203 1994 

1 of 3 1/11/24, 08:21 

http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/
http://www.myflorida.com/
http://www.myflorida.com/
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_about.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_about.aspx
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/divisions.html
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/divisions.html
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_about.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_about.aspx
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/dbpr/
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/DBPR/about-us/departments-secretary/
http://www.myfloridalicense.com/DBPR/about-us/departments-secretary/
https://floridabuilding.org/c/default.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/default.aspx
javascript:__doPostBack('public_layout_top$public_top_menu$lnkLogin','')
javascript:__doPostBack('public_layout_top$public_top_menu$lnkLogin','')
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_user_regi.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_user_regi.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_hottopics.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_hottopics.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/sc/sc_default.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/sc/sc_default.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_under_construction.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_under_construction.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_publications.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_publications.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_about.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_about.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_under_construction.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_under_construction.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_links.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_links.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_under_construction.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/c/c_under_construction.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_default.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_default.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_default.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_default.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_app_srch.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_app_srch.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_app_lst.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_app_lst.aspx
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Independence/FL33622_R1_COI_EvalReportPEL836A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Independence/FL33622_R1_COI_EvalReportPEL836A.pdf
mailto:dcriscuolo@cws.cc
mailto:rukashazamc@pella.com
mailto:certifications@cws.cc
mailto:pellaproductapproval@pella.com
https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_app_dtl.aspx?param=wGEVXQwt


  
 

    

          

    
    

 

    
  

 

          
  

    
    

 

         

 

          
  

    
    

  

          

    
    

 

    
  

 

            

Florida Building Code Online https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_app_dtl.aspx?param=wGEVXQwt... 

Equivalence of Product Standards 
Certified By 

Sections from the Code 

Product Approval Method Method 1 Option D 

Date Submitted 10/12/2023 

Date Validated 10/13/2023 

Date Pending FBC Approval 10/21/2023 

Date Approved 12/13/2023 

Summary of Products 

FL # Model, Number or Name Description 

33622.1 3" Alum. Tube mullion 3" Alum. Tube Mullion, Horizontal & Vertical, Fin & Flange 
applications, HVHZ Large Missile Impact 

Limits of Use 
Approved for use in HVHZ: Yes 
Approved for use outside HVHZ: Yes 
Impact Resistant: Yes 
Design Pressure: N/A 
Other: Large Missile Impact; See Installation Instructions and 
Evaluation Report for complete list of Limitations and 
Conditions of Use. 

Installation Instructions 
FL33622_R1_II_PEL-836A.pdf
 Verified By: Lucas A. Turner 58201
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 
Evaluation Reports 
FL33622_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL836A.pdf
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 

33622.2 3" Alum. Tube mullion 3" Alum. Tube Mullion, Horizontal & Vertical, Fin & Flange 
applications. (IMPACT-WIND ZONE 3) 

Limits of Use 
Approved for use in HVHZ: No 
Approved for use outside HVHZ: Yes 
Impact Resistant: Yes 
Design Pressure: N/A 
Other: Wind Zone 3. Installation Instructions and Evaluation 
Report for complete list of Limitations and Conditions of Use. 

Installation Instructions 
FL33622_R1_II_PEL-1207.pdf
 Verified By: Luke A. Turner 58201
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 
Evaluation Reports 
FL33622_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL1207.pdf
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 

33622.3 4" Alum. Tube Mullion 4" Alum. Tube Mullion, Horizontal & Vertical, Fin & Flange 
applications. (IMPACT-WIND ZONE 3) 

Limits of Use 
Approved for use in HVHZ: No 
Approved for use outside HVHZ: Yes 
Impact Resistant: Yes 
Design Pressure: N/A 
Other: See Installation Instructions and Evaluation Report for 
complete list of Limitations and Conditions of Use. Installation 
Instructions 

Installation Instructions 
FL33622_R1_II_PEL-1208.pdf
 Verified By: Luke A. Turner 58201
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 
Evaluation Reports 
FL33622_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL1208.pdf
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 

33622.4 4" Alum. Tube Mullion 4" Alum. Tube Mullion, Horizontal & Vertical, Fin & Flange 
applications, HVHZ Large Missile Impact 

Limits of Use 
Approved for use in HVHZ: Yes 
Approved for use outside HVHZ: Yes 
Impact Resistant: Yes 
Design Pressure: N/A 
Other: Large Missile Impact; See Installation Instructions and 
Evaluation Report for complete list of Limitations and 
Conditions of Use. 

Installation Instructions 
FL33622_R1_II_PEL-837A.pdf
 Verified By: Lucas A. Turner 58201
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 
Evaluation Reports 
FL33622_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL837A.pdf
 Created by Independent Third Party: Yes 

33622.5 5 1/2" Alum. Tube Mullion 5 1/2" Alum. Tube Mullion, Horizontal & Vertical, Fin & Flange 
applications, HVHZ Large Missile Impact 

2 of 3 1/11/24, 08:21 

https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33622_R1_II_PEL-836A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33622_R1_II_PEL-836A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33622_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL836A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33622_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL836A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33622_R1_II_PEL-1207.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33622_R1_II_PEL-1207.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33622_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL1207.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33622_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL1207.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33622_R1_II_PEL-1208.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33622_R1_II_PEL-1208.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33622_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL1208.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33622_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL1208.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33622_R1_II_PEL-837A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Instl_Docs/FL33622_R1_II_PEL-837A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33622_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL837A.pdf
https://floridabuilding.org/upload/PR_Tech_Docs/FL33622_R1_AE_EvalReportPEL837A.pdf
phrg

https://floridabuilding.org/pr/pr_app_dtl.aspx?param=wGEVXQwt













































VINYL SIDING 

Aluminum Windows (front of house) 

Wood Rotting 












Gap between window frame and wall/ceiling 

Temperature logs of extreme inefficiency 















Broken pulley system showing windows are inoperable 

Cracks in glass 




MISC PHOTOS 


	HPB Agenda
	DRC Agenda
	HPB25-116,413 W Park St



